History of the Wilkerson House

by Colleen Jennings Batchelor
Bryan, Texas
1983

The structure that is the subject of this applarats located at 614
East 29th Street in Bryan, Texas. Within the comityut is widely
recognized as one of Bryan's noteworthy homesglepecifically listed in
the Brazos County Tour Guigdpublished by the Citizen's for Historic
Preservation, and in the Historical AssessmenBfarzos Valleyrepared
by the Brazos Valley Development Council, the &eancil of
Governments.

The original owners of the house were Mr. and M8Y. Wilkerson.
They purchased the property in 1905 from F.E. agat|RPryor for
$1750.00. A small house located on the property was ranedfae existing
pier and beam structure built in 1912.

Mr. Wilkerson was a prominent Bryan banker, holding position of
Cashier of the City National Bank for many yeansaddition to being a
Director of the bank. A house across the streehfihe Wilkerson house
was built by Mr. Ed Hall, president of the Firsafet Bank and Trust.
Another house located one block away on East 30#e the Boatwright
home, was constructed during the same era by Matvida@ht, one of the
founders of the First National Bank. For obviouss@ns the area soon
became popularly known as "Banker's Row", a terinusied by some of the
older Bryan residents.

The second owners of the house were Mr. and M Parker. Mr.
Parker acquired the house in 1919. Several mendbéne Parker family
were very active in the business affairs of the mamity. John Parker
managed the Parker family's extensive cotton basimethe Brazos
Bottom and along with Mr. Wilkerson served on theaBl of Directors of

! Deed attached as Exhibit "A."



the City National Bank. John Parker's father, Miltdit" Parker, was one
of the founders of the City National Bank and J&lamker's brother, Sam,
for years ran the Parker Lumber Company which toslayill a thriving
business. The house remained in the Parker famtiy1936 when it was
sold to Dr. and Mrs. Lamar Jones.

Dr. Jones was a very popular dentist in Bryan fanynyears.
According to his obituary published in the Bryanlp&agleon March 10,
1966, Dr. Jones was a lifelong member of the comiynwho was active in
civic affairs. He served on the Bryan Board of Eatian, now called the
School Board, was one of the early presidentseBityan Lion's Club and
also served as president of the Brazos Dental Assme. Additionally, he
served on the staff of St. Joseph's Hospital arslhead of the dental unit of
the 56th Evacuation Hospital in Italy for three anldalf years during World
War Il.

Mrs. Marie Jones was also quite involved in comryuaivic affairs.
She served as President of the local Woman's Glubglthe 1961-62 year
and as President of the Bryan Garden Club. Shealsasactive with the
Fine Arts Council. In 1970 Mrs. Jones sold the BdmJoseph G. Ginn
who was, at the time, a vice-president with AleManufacturing in
Bryan. In 1976 the home was sold to the presentosyBill Batchelor and
Colleen Jennings Batchelor.

The structure was built in 19?LBy Mr. Charlie E. Jenkins, an
architect and contractor whose work has had a peampact on the City
of Bryan. Several of Mr. Jenkins' buildings halready been granted
Texas historic structure markers and several maelgible for them.

The Astin-Porter home at 600 East 29th, the Jertianse at 607 East 27th
and St. Andrew's Episcopal Church are all markstbht structures built
by Mr. Jenkins.

2 Date of construction and identity of contractormbsshed through

examination of records of Parker Lumber Co.; copigbe relevant ledger
sheets for 1912 and 1913 are attached and markadieB."



The exterior of the house is cedar. This matevad presumably
chosen as an effective method of dealing with nelded rot. Each room in
the house, with the exception of the bathrooms ahésast three openings to
the outside (windows and/or doors) and the streasipriented so as to take
full advantage of the prevailing southerly breezddarge wrap-around
porch that shields three sides of the house freattsunlight demonstrates
another highly effective method of coping with ttienate. The porch is
open on the front and enclosed on the side and béblough the enclosed
portions have windows that open for summertimeiogol The side of the
house without a porch features a porte cochine tongue and groove porch
floorboards are cedar and are a full one inch thitle style of the house is
referred to by some as the Homestead Styléhile the house has several
decorative features on the exterior the style s a marked departure
from the highly ornate buildings constructed onkgw years earlier.

The interior of the house is almost totally woodl. & the walls are
wooden and are covered with wallpaper. With onfigva exceptions, all of
the door and window hardware is brass. There gl &rge rooms plus
three and one half baths. Originally the home wesgtdd with wood or
coal-burning stoves as evidenced by the fact thettyeroom in the house
except the living room has a flue (now covered peennected to a
chimney. The living room has a coal-burning firegaCeilings in the home
are ten and a half feet high downstairs and nimleaaimalf feet high upstairs.
The high ceilings combined with the very large detiung windows
throughout the house and the orientation to thelSoause the home to be
quite well ventilated. There are even a total fveindows on three different
sides of the attic that are still today used totNae and cool the area
during the hot summers.

The two largest bedroofhis the house were originally connected to
an upstairs sleeping porch on the second flool@rated on the southeast
side of the building. During the ownership of treuke by the Jones family

3 See attached pages marked as Exhibit "C" from @idsid Journal
4 Dimensions of the two rooms are approximatell/2Ax 16' and 13’
x 18’




one half of the porch was converted into a bathrddawever, the
"sleeping" porch is still valuable as an energysssumation feature since it
serves to shield the bedrooms from the morningaswhfurnishes a
sometimes excessive amount of breeze when the apened up.

The downstairs area features quarter-sawn oakiffig@and oak
stairs. Very large pocket doors separate the livomm from the dining
room and the large entry room. French doors op@n the living room
onto the side porch and from the dining room ohtlack porch. A
separate "servant's stairs" from the butler's gara up to the stairway
landing is typical of the larger homes built at time. In fact, an early
picture of the home, a copy of which is enclosedjicates that there was a
separate servants quarters at the rear of the o the early years.

The flooring in the upstairs rooms is an extrenteyd pine
heartwood, sometimes referred to as "long-leaf'ponérich-litered pine".
All of the individual tongue and groove planks the entire length of the
room; many are as long as eighteen feet. The antesalls and woodwork
upstairs are also an exceedingly hard pine, thowghéve been brought
from the East Texas mills. Square nails can be a&em removing any
woodwork.

With the exception of the conversion of one-halthef sleeping porch
into a bathroom and the addition of the half-bastvdstairs underneath the
stairway, (both projects being executed by the ddammily,) there have been
no significant alterations to the house sinceatsstruction. In fact, some of
the original plumbing and light fixtures still remaand are in good working
order.

s Exhibit “D.”



